SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 21, 2013
10: 03 a. m

10: 03: 55 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 10:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

James Arnstrong, Staff, Senator Pete Kelly; David Teal,
Director, Legislative Finance Division; Denise Liccioli,
Staff, Senator Donnie dson; Sheila Peterson, Staff,
Senator M ke Dunleavy; Steve Ricci, Staff, Senator M ke
Dunl eavy; Karen Rehfeld, Director, Ofice of Managenent and
Budget, O fice of the Governor.

SUMVARY
CSHB 65( FI N) APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

CSHB 65(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

CSHB 66( FI N) APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

CSHB 66(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

SUBCOWM TTEE REPORTS TO FULL COWM TTEE



#hb65
#hb66
CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 65(FI N

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for
certain prograns, capitalizing funds, and nmaki ng
reappropriations; and providing for an effective
date."

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 66(FI N

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensive nental health program and naking a
reappropriation; and providing for an effective date."

10: 05: 14 AM

Co- Chair Meyer MOVED to ADOPT committee substitute for CSHB
65(FIN), work draft 28-GHL799\| (Bailey, 3/20/13). There
bei ng NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

Co- Chair Meyer MOVED to ADOPT committee substitute for CSHB
66(FIN), work draft 28-GHL797\P (Bailey, 3/20/13). There
bei ng NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

JAMES ARMSTRONG, STAFF, SENATOR PETE KELLY, explained the
changes in the commttee substitute. He referred to the
three spreadsheets from the Legislative Finance Division

(LFD) : " 1. 2013 Legislature-Qperating Budget, Agency
Summar y- House Structure; Nunbers and Language"; "2. 2013
Legi sl ature-Qperati ng Budget , Agency Sunmmar y- House

Structure; Nunmbers and Language; Nunbers and Language Fund
G oups: Ceneral Funds"; and "3. 2013 Legislature-Qperating
Budget, Statew de Total s-House Structure" (copies on file).
He explained that the CS would spend a total of $9.851
billion including $5.798 billion of Unrestricted GCeneral
Funds (UGF), $746.69 mllion of Designated General Funds
(DGF), $1.277 billion in other state funds, and $2.29
billion in federal funds. He announced that the difference
between the CS and the governor's proposed anmended budget
was | ess than $62.659 million.

10: 09: 24 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/21/13 10: 03 A M



Co-Chair Kelly wondered if M. Arnmstrong had nentioned the
anount of UGF. M. Arnmstrong responded that he had shared
t he UGF nunber.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered where that nunber could be found
M. Arnmstrong |ooked at page 2, and stated that the UGF
nunber was $5.798 billion.

Co-Chair Kelly felt that the UG nunber was inperative for
the record in order to point out that $9 billion of state
funds were not being spent.

M. Arnstrong stated that there was Departnent of Mlitary
and Veterans Affairs (DWA) |anguage that dealt with the
Al aska Aerospace Corporation related to a deadline for
mul ti-year contracts that was renoved from the bill. There
was a provision in the governor's budget that collected
fees from the Bul k Fuel Revolving Loan Fund, but that fund

will be elimnated the followng vyear. Therefore, the
$45,000 that was dedicated to that fund would go to the
general fund. He explained that there was a $10 nillion

capitalization to the Al aska Energy Authority (AEA) that
was renmoved from the budget, and would be a conferencable
item He shared that the House version of the bill added a
mning professor at the University of Al aska Southeast
(UAS), but the funding was contained in the nunbers section
of the commttee substitute, so the |anguage for that
request was renoved.

M . Arnmstrong |ooked at page 58 of the conmmttee
substitute, lines 26 through 31 and page 59, lines 1
through 4. He explained that the governor's submtted
budget showed that $33.091 nmillion for the Power Cost
Equal i zati on (PCE) endownent gained interest each year. He
announced that $7.26 mllion would supplenment the program
for a total of $40.351 million. He explained that a |arge
deposit was made to the endownent in FY 11, so the genera
fund subsidies were getting |lower based on a three year
average calculation of fund balance. In FY 15, the fund
bal ance on the GF subsidy was supposed to be renpved as the
$400 million hits the three rolling average. The proposa
was a renoval of $7 mllion of G- and utilized $7.260
mllion fromthe PCE

Senator Hoffman requested a copy of the inpact of the

change to the PCE. Co-Chair Kelly requested an expl anation
of the inpact of the PCE change.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/21/13 10: 03 A M



10: 15: 52 AM

DAVID TEAL, DI RECTOR, LEGQ SLATIVE FINANCE DI VI SION, | ooked

at "Power Cost Equalization Endowrent Fund - History and
Projections (in MIlions)" (copy on file). He explained
that the long-term showed very Ilittle difference. The

amount of the PCE was sufficient so the payout from the
endowent would drop to below 6 percent once the bal ance
was fully phased into average balance conputation. He
stated that the bal ance was expected to begin to grow in
t he endownent, which would fully fund the PCE. He renarked
that subsection (g), page 58 contained backstop | anguage
stating that if the $40 mllion was insufficient for the
current year; addition nmoney would cone from G- to fully
fund the PCE

Senat or O son | ooked at page 58, subsection (g). He noted
the $40 mllion increment fromthe PCE Fund was included on
line 26, subsection (f).

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that the inpact of the PCE paynent
would not change, and the inpact of the endowent was
mnimal. It would continue to grow under scenarios outlined
in the spreadsheets. M. Teal agreed.

Senator Hoffrman wondered if the backstop |[|anguage was
currently included. M. Teal |ooked at subsection (g) on
page 58:

(g) If the anpunt appropriated in (f) of this section
is not sufficient to pay power cost equalization
program costs w thout proration, the anmount necessary
to pay power cost equalization program costs w thout
proration, estimated to be zero, is appropriated from
the general fund to the Departnment of Conmerce,
Community and Economic Devel opnent, Al aska Energy
Aut hority, power cost equalization allocation, for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

M. Arnstrong | ooked at page 60, lines 19 through 23, which
was a reappropriation of a nmulti-year appropriation nmade in
FY 13 in Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
The funds in the prior year were $9 nmillion, and it was
estimated that $6 mllion remined to be reappropriated
into the Behavior and Medicaid conponent of the DHSS
budget .

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/21/13 10: 03 A M



M. Arnmstrong highlighted page 60, lines 10 through 18,
which was related to the Low Incone Heating and Energy
Assi stance Program The section was a backstop provision
that LFD and the subconmmttees worked on, and it stated
that if there were insufficient federal funds in the
current year, then G- would fund the program He |ooked at
page 62, line 23, which was a change to the Departnent of
Natural Resources (DNR) Division of Gl and Gas request
that fully funds the project. He |ooked at page 72, lines
12 through 13, which dealt with the Trauma Care Fund. He
stated that the governor had requested $2 nmllion, the
House denied that request, and the conmttee substitute
added that request back into the bill.

10: 21: 24 AM
AT EASE

10: 27: 52 AM
RECONVENED

ASUBCOW TTEE REPORTS TO FULL COW TTEE

Co- Chair Meyer explained the Department of Transportation
and Public Facilities (DOI/PF) and Departnent of Commerce,
Community and Economic Developnent (DCCED) subconmittee
reports. He explained that there were sonme reductions in
the DOT/PF budget totaling approximately $7.1 mllion. He
stated that nobst of the reductions were nmade to the Al aska
Marine Hi ghway System budget, related to vessel fuel and
vessel operations. He remarked that the comm ssioner of
DOT/ PF had shared that the reductions would not have a
maj or inpact on service. He shared that there was a fleet
reduction of $2.7 nmillion spread throughout the Northern

Central, and Southeast regions equally. The DCCED reduction
was approximately $3.9 mllion related to grants to naned
recipients in the Operating Budget, which were typically in
the Capital Budget. He shared that there were reductions to
the Al cohol Beverage and Control (ABC) Board. He explained
that there were unexpected costs related to recently noving
the ABC Board from the Departnment of Public Safety (DPS) to
DCCED, so those costs were addressed in the DCCED budget.

10: 30: 17 AM

Senator O son invited his staff to explain the DHSS and DPS
budget s.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/21/13 10: 03 A M



DENI SE LI CCl OLI, STAFF, SENATOR DONNI E OLSON, explained the
DHSS budget. She stated that the budget authorization

consisted of alnbst $2.7 billion including $1.2 billion in
UG, $74.1 mllion DG, $94.7 mllion in other funds, and
$1.2 billion in federal funds. The budget proposal was
approximately $1.2 mllion in G- less than the governor's

proposed budget. She shared that the subcommttee did not
accept the requested increase in Mdicaid for the woodwork
effect for $7.385 million. She stated that the subconmmttee
added $1.1 mllion for the Alaska Mdicare dinic; a
$450,000 one-time item for the +the Conplex Behavior
Col | aborative; $565,000 of G- to increase the Enmergency
Medi cal Services grants; and $6 mllion to the Behaviora
Health Medicaid Services conponent. She explained that
there was intent added to the budget that allowed the
conm ssioner of DHSS the authority to nove up to $50
mllion of funds within the budget between appropriation
lines. She remarked that the intent |anguage was unusual
but necessary to allow DHSS to react to the federa
sequester, and prevent the need for a supplenental budget
request.

Ms. Liccioli explained DPS budget. She stated that the
subconm ttee authorized a total $208.79 mllion including
$176 mllion of UG, $6.4 mllion in DG, $15.3 mllion in
ot her funds, and $10.8 mllion of federal funds. She stated
that the proposal was $707,200 below the governor's
request. She stated that the subcomrittee disapproved the
request for three new troopers and $827,000 for a new sex
trafficking unit. She also stated that the subcommittee
added $120,000 of GF to increase the Victins for Justice
funding. She furthered that there was intent added that
asked DPS to work with the grantees to determ ne what other
needs were unnmet for the Village Public Safety Oficers
(VPSGs); and to use any anticipated savings from vacancy to
be put into the program for housing, equipnent, etc.

Co-Chair Kelly surmsed that the rationale behind not
funding the sex trafficking unit, was because there were no
reported cases of sex trafficking. Senator O son replied
that there were no sex trafficking cases on either side
whi ch indicated no activity of recent sex trafficking.

10: 35: 35 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/21/13 10: 03 A M



SHEI LA PETERSQN, STAFF, SENATOR M KE DUNLEAVY, expl ai ned
the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnment (DEED)
budget proposal summary. She stated that the proposal had
$350 mllion including $66.5 nmllion in UG, $24.319
mllion in DG, $26.051 in other funds, and $233.798
mllion in federal funds. She noted that the federal funds
in the DEED were three tines as large as the G- for DEED.
She stressed that nost of the federal funds were utilized
as grants to the school districts. She stated that the fund
that the Fund the Digitizing Education in Alaska Initiative
had a reduction of $738,000. She renmarked that the anount
gave DEED flexibility to fund the four different prograns.
She explained that a new program "The Jobs for Anerica's
Graduate" was elimnated because it was a new program SO
its startup date could occur at a later date. She stated
that the early childhood education prograns matched the
work done in the House; because it was not clear which
early chil dhood program was giving the best performance per
dol | ar.

Ms. Peterson explained the Departnent of Environnental
Conservation (DEC) budget. She stated that there was a
reduction to two prograns that totaled $446,500, for
increased staff tinme. She renmarked that the noney in the
base could cover the remaining half that was renoved. She
stated that there was change in the intent |anguage from
t he House, which dealt with the Ol and Hazardous Substance
Rel ease Prevention and Response Fund. She noted that the
DEC proposal contained $21.784 mllion in UG $6.895 in
DGF;, $11.199 in other funds; $24.938 in federal funds;
totaling $84.817 mllion.

10: 39: 53 AM

STEVE RICCl, STAFF, SENATOR M KE DUNLEAVY, highlighted the
Department of Fish and Ganme (DFG budget. He stated that
the DFG subcommittee recommended $79.971 mllion in UG
$8.586 in DG, $62.849 nillion in other funds; $63.337 in
federal funds; totaling $214.745 mllion. He remarked that
t he proposal reduced UG- spending by 1.1 percent from the
governor's anended budget. He stated that the subconmmttee
approved a $400,000 of G- for the Southeast Port Sanpling
Program in the Comrercial Fisheries Division, which would
be used to exam ne mxed stock fisheries in the area. The
subcomm ttee approved $273,000 of G- for mixed stock
sanpling in upper Cook Inlet. The subcommttee provided
funding for the Kodiak area in the anmpbunt of $100,000. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/21/13 10: 03 A M



explained that the subcommttee approved two unall ocated
cuts to reduce GF spending: $579,000 for a three-year
average of a |apse bal ance that equal ed 0.73 percent of the
total GF request for the FY 14 budget; and $315, 000
reduction that equaled 5 percent of the agency's travel
budget. He stated that the subcomrittee approved $436, 200
of G- to leverage approximately $1.8 mllion in federal
funds for the WIldlife Conservation D vision.

10:42: 35 AM
AT EASE

10:43:49 AM
RECONVENED

10: 43: 52 AM

Senator Bishop explained the Departnment of Corrections
(DOC) budget proposal. He stated that the subconmttee
accepted the House changes, which were the sane as the
governor's anended budget. The budget totaled $332.191
mllion. He noted the fund source change of $2 million from
UG to federal receipts for the housing of federa

prisoners. He stated that there was a $5.5 nillion fund
change from PFD crim nal to UG due to decreased
garni shnments. He remarked that DOC was concerned that the
prison population rate was increasing, and there nay need
to be a relevant focus on increased woman's prison
capacity. He noted that he was tentatively planning to
travel to Bethel, to exam ne the overcrowding in the Bethel

Jai | .

Senator Bishop explained that DWA budget. He explained
that there was a $405,000 decrenent related to a fund
source change. He stressed that the budget was below the
governor's proposed anended budget. He remarked that there
was an addition of $8 mllion to fully fund the Al aska
Aerospace Corporation in support of anticipated contracts
He announced that there was intent |anguage that stated
that Al aska Aerospace Corporation would not request nore
than $6 million in FY 15, $4 nillion in FY 16, and $2
mllion in FY 17.

Senator Bishop highlighted the DNR budget. He announced
that the subcommttee's proposal was |ess than the
governor's anmended budget by $2.76 million for a total of
$159 nmillion. He stated that the proposal noved funding of

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/21/13 10: 03 A M



the arbitration of oil and gas royalty in the Al aska
Gasline Inducement Act (AGA) nonitoring and advising
sections to the |anguage portions of the bill, due to the
historic inability to accurately predict the actual

expenditures. He stated that the subconmttee maintained
the ability of DNR to staff the Guide Concession Program
while declining any new noney for inplenentation of the
program wuntil such time that the Ilegislature approved
appropriate |egislation.

Senator Bishop explained the Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent (DLWD) budget. He announced that the
subcomi ttee proposal was $550, 000 |ess than the governor's
anended budget. He stated that the subcommttee did not
accept the $200,000 for the Al aska Vocational and Techni cal
Education Center (AVTEC) increnent, because AVTEC had the
ability to raise tuitions. He stated that the subconmmttee
mai ntained the ability of DLWD to prepare Al aska workers
for what is anticipated to be a significant increase in oil
expl oration devel opnent related activities.

10: 50: 07 AM

Co-Chair Kelly noted that the CS restored $1 million in the
University of Alaska budget for nmaintenance, and a
custodial contract. AN increnent of $130,000 for the
Fai r banks canpus avi ati on program was al so i ncl uded.

Vi ce- Chair Fai rcl ough expl ai ned t he Depart ment of
Adm ni stration ( DOA) budget . She stated t hat t he
subcomm ttee had changed the structure of the Al aska Land
Mobil e Radio (ALMR) paynents on behalf the nunicipalities.
Previously, the ALMR paynents were directed toward DCCED,
and then transferred to DOA. She stated that there was a
reduction of the authorization to the Violent Crines
Conpensation Board to nore closely align with anticipated
funds available in the Violent Crines Conpensation Fund.
She announced that the total allocation for DOA was
$336.249 million.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough explained the Departnent of Revenue
(DOR) budget. She pointed that the subconmttee funded two
positions that were transferred from DCCED to DOR rel ated
to the Film Ofice nove. She stated that the subcommittee
all ocated $350.68 million. She added that the subconmttee
accepted the governor's request for an additional nmaster
auditor for the Division of G| and Gas.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/21/13 10: 03 A M



Vi ce-Chair Fairclough explained the UA budget. She stated
that the subcommittee reduced the receipt authority by $36
mllion, which was a recomendation from LFD. She pointed
out that the wuniversity still had sufficient funds, and
recei pt authority. The subcommttee funded a conprehensive
student advising for $400,000; the Mning Regulatory
Training Certificate Program for $200,000; and the Small
Busi ness Devel opnent Center for $356,000. She stressed that
t he budget was made in order to ensure that the University
of Al aska could fund their basic fixed costs.

Co-Chair Kelly explained the Governor's Ofice budget. He
stated the UGF was $28.881 mllion; federal funds were
$198,000; DFG was $4,900; other funds were $521, 700;
totaling $29.606 mllion.

10: 54: 47 AM

Co-Chair Kelly explained the Legislature's budget. The
subconmi ttee approved $73.527 million in UG $71.4 mllion
in DG, $403,000 in other funds. He pointed out that the
subconm ttee reduced expenses in LFD by $250,000; and
$350, 000 in other comittee expenses.

Co-Chair Kelly explained the Court System budget. He stated
that the subcommittee approved $110.196 million in UG
$518,000 in DG~ $1.801 nillion in other funds; $1.675
mllion in federal funds; totaling $114.191 nmillion. He
poi nted out that the subcomrittee used $689,000 to replace
federal pass through funding for the therapeutic courts. He
announced that the subconmittee allocated $114,300 to fund
a security analyst position. The subcommttee al so approved
an allocation of $691,000 for increased bandwi dth to neet
the needs in rural Al aska.

Co-Chair Kelly highlighted the Departnent of Law (LAW
budget. He stated that the subconmittee approved $63.352
mllion in UGk, $2.698 million in DG $28.432 mllion in
other funds; $1.966 mllion in federal funds; totaling
$96.450 million. He stated that the subconmittee all ocated
three quarters of the requested funding for the new

attorney positions in Fairbanks, Bethel, and Juneau. He
remarked that the subcomm ttee added three new positions in
the Natural Resources Section of the Gvil Dvision for

st at ehood def ense.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/21/13 10: 03 A M



KAREN REHFELD, DI RECTOR, OFFI CE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCET,
CFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR, thanked the committee for the tine
that was spent drafting the budget.

Senator Hoffrman queried the progress of the contracts. M.
Rehfeld responded that there was success in negotiating
agreenents with the confidential enpl oyees, gener al
governnent, and supervisory unit. She announced that the
finance commttees had been given the bargaining unit
agreenents and the costs as of March 19.

Co-Chair Kelly explained that the non-covered units natch
needed to be included in a separate bill. M. Rehfeld
agr eed.

M. Arnmstrong discussed the follow ng days' agendas.

CSHB 65(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

CSHB 66(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
10: 59: 51 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:59 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 03/21/13 10: 03 A M



